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The purpose of this first addendum is to publish the minutes of the pre-proposal conference/site 
overview.  No written questions were submitted prior to or at the pre-proposal conference.  The 
following request was submitted the following day and the narrative is attached hereto with an 
electronic CAD attachment posted to the Purchasing Web-Site. 
 
Amendment: 

1. Per Section 5-5-17(A) of the City Purchases Ordinance, 5% local preference will 
not be applied in evaluations of this solicitation as follows: 

5-5-17  RESIDENT AND LOCAL PREFERENCES. 

     (A)     Application of Preferences.  A local or resident preference shall be applied to all 
requests for bids or requests for proposals for the purchase of goods, services or 
construction or for the award of concession contracts, but shall not be applied to any 
solicitation for a purchase or concession contract in excess of $5,000,000, for a federal aid 
construction project, or when the expenditure of federal funds designated for the contract 
is involved.  

 Therefore, please amend the Request for Proposals as follows: 
Page 25, Part 4, Evaluation of Offers.  Delete Paragraph 4.3 “Local Preference” in its entirety. 
Page 26, Part 5, Instructions for Local Preference Certification Form.  Delete this entire page. 
Page 26, Part 5, Instructions for Local Preference Certification Form.  Delete this entire page. 
  
Pre-Proposal Conference/ Site Overview: 
 
The Pre-Proposal Conference/Site Overview was held as scheduled.  Vendors in attendance signed 
the attendance roster.  No written questions were submitted. 
 
The meeting was opened by Ms. Sandy Vescovi, Purchasing,  as follows. 
 
Purchasing presented an overview of the procurement process.  Emphasis was made regarding the 
following procedures: 
 

• Sealed Proposals are due Monday, 6 November by 4:00 P.M. Mountain Standard Time.  This 
time and date shall be strictly observed.  All late Proposals shall be rejected and returned to 
sender unsealed by the Office of the City Clerk. 

 
• Although not mandatory, potential Offerors were encouraged to attend the scheduled pre-

proposal conference and site overview. Those Offerors who do not attend will be responsible 
for requesting any addenda or other information that may be generated as a result of this pre-
proposal conference.  

 
• City Contact:  The sole point of contact for this Request for Proposals is the City of 

Albuquerque Purchasing Division {with limited contact with the City of Albuquerque 
Department of Economic Development as stated below}.  Contact the following 
individual(s) regarding this RFP: 
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Sandy Vescovi, Contract Section Supervisor, Department of Finance and Administrative 
Services, Purchasing Division, Phone:  (505) 768-3341, E-Mail: svescovi@cabq.gov  
Post Office Box 1293, Albuquerque, New Mexico 87103 
 
As stated in Part 3, “Scope of Work”, Paragraph 3.8, “Municipal Redevelopment 
Bonds (MRB)”.  The site under consideration for the event center/arena is within a City of 
Albuquerque Metropolitan Redevelopment sector.  As a result, the Offeror may be able to 
take advantage of Metropolitan Redevelopment bonds as a financing component.  Offerors 
wishing to include MRBs as a financing component should contact the Office of Economic 
Development to obtain information on the policies and procedures for this program. 
www.cabq.gov/econdev/ 

 
Discussion shall be limited to MRB subject matter. 

  
Failure to comply with this requirement shall cause such Offeror’s proposal to be rejected.  
 

• Page 7, Paragraph 1.2.5, “Sequence of Events”.  The City shall make every effort to adhere 
to the above referenced schedule.  The Proposal due date is not subject to change, except by 
written addendum 

 
• Notification of Recommendation of Award.  Upon approval of a recommendation of award, 

all respondents to the Request for Proposals shall be notified in writing by the Purchasing 
Office.  Upon receipt of notice of award, the RFP files will be open for review. 

 
Are there any questions regarding this process?  Are there any questions regarding the RFP in 
general?   
 
Since there are no questions at this time, I will turn the meeting over to Gail for project overview.   
 
RFP Project Overview: 
 
An overview of the project was presented by Ms. Gayle Reese, Chief Financial Officer.  Key points 
of the overview:  {Also present were Dr. Bruce Perlman, Chief Administrative Officer and Ed 
Adams, Chief Operations Officer.  Both had input in answering questions and greeting the 
attendees.} 
 

• We will be looking at the recommended site as described in the RFP, from the top of the 
Convention Center Structure, which will give you a perspective of the site that we cannot get 
from the ground.  You will be able to see the scope of it as opposed to the perspective from 
the ground. 

 
• This project is a major undertaking, it is a commitment on the part of the City, not unlike 

what we did with the Isotopes Stadium and we believe this represents a step forward in what 
the City can offer not only locally but as a regional facility. Previous discussions were 
limited to an Arena only.  This Request for Proposals has opened up the scope so we are 
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looking for a broader emphasis from all of you because basically, theoretically, you have the 
expertise to do this.  We encourage you to think very creatively about this project, we are 
very interested in hearing what you have to propose for the City. 

 
•  There are virtually no holds bar on this project when it comes to whatever you want to 

propose.  We truly do want to know what the private sector thinks and what we should do 
with that end of downtown.  We will be looking to you to tell us what you think the very 
highest investment and potential for the property. 

 
• The whole idea of an arena is predicated on the 2010 plan adopted 5 years ago by the City 

Council to revitalize downtown.  At that time they identified a site essentially at 1st and 
Central, east end of the downtown district and it specifically identified an arena to be placed 
on that location as a catalytic project to spur redevelopment downtown.  We have made 
substantial lead as a community and not only the City, but also private investors have made 
substantial investments in this area.  

 
• You will note however in the RFP an Offeror may propose a different location and you are 

free to do that and we will consider that.  Primarily for that reason we have not yet acquired 
all the land we proposed.  The City owns about 1/3 of it so you will have to acquire the rest 
of it and that will be driven somewhat by the scope of the proposal we receive. 

 
• Please note that the RFP specifically calls not only for a proposal for what actually the 

project would look like but the timeline for the development of that project as well as how 
that project would be financed 

 
• The City is willing to work with you either through Metropolitan Revenue Bonds or any 

other number of financing options that are available to the City.  
 

• We believe that we are at the critical point from this location and particularly our Rapid Ride 
services has been extraordinarily successful initially running primarily east and west, now 
expanded to run north and south on Coors and looking to expand north and south on the east 
side of town. 

 
• The Rail Runner services started and the number of people using public transportation 

between the Rail Runner and Rapid Ride has more than doubled.  It  amazing at the number 
of people who are now considering the idea of mass transit.  To those of you who do not live 
here, in the summer we ran the rapid ride until 3:00 in the morning on Friday and Saturday 
nights and always had someone on that bus willing to ride downtown.   

 
• Pre-built parking is available for nights and weekends, which would probably be the primary 

time the Event Center would be in use.  Of course, if you would like to include other kinds of 
usage there is still parking capacity downtown.  That parking was built in some degree, in 
anticipation of placing an event center in the area as identified in the 2010 plan, however the 
way things are going, we believe additional parking will be needed before this project is 
over. 
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• There are a couple of things that are happening on the ground right now that were not 
mentioned particularly in the RFP but I will mention at this time, so that you are aware of 
them.  They are items that have some sensitivity to us here in the community.  We have a Dr. 
Martin Luther King Jr. Memorial on the far north side of  Dr. Martin Luther King Jr. Blvd. 
[it will be pointed out to you] which is not a particularly well accessible memorial.  If there 
is some way you think that could be better utilized, please feel free to mention this in the 
Proposal. 

 
There is also the building that is currently located on the corner of central and 2nd which has 
some surface parking attached to it.  The owner and operator of that property currently 
allows under some arrangement, Joy Junction, a non-profit organization, [which is a shelter 
operation here in Albuquerque], to operate the parking facility, which we understand 
generates  about  $60,000 to $75,000 per year in revenues for Joy Junction’s debt service. 
  
Those are the only two items that I think are particularly sensitive from the local point of 
view.  If you have ideas on how to address these issues in your proposal we would like to 
have them addressed.  

 
• Something fairly unique about the anticipated site is there is no residential so we are not 

talking about bothering neighbors or putting somebody out of their home since it is an 
entirely commercial district..  This is why the City believes this is a very good site.   

 
• We are really excited about this project, if it seems a little structured, it is by purpose.  We 

believe it is incredibly important that this process be as open and as transparent not only to 
our council but to all the residents of the City and by doing it through the RFP process we 
felt that was the best way to achieve that.  Even though it leaves you sitting wondering what 
we are doing and how the committee looks at your proposal and it means that some of the 
contacts you may have normally made in the bidding process are not available to you. For all 
intensive purposes the city has gone black with respect to talking with any of you.  Once we 
have finished this meeting today all conversations will have to go through Sandy Vescovi, so 
we appreciate your cooperation on that and I’m sure you understand why we are asking for it 
to be done this way. 

 
This concludes my comments on the Request for Proposals.  Are there any questions? 
 
1)   I have a question regarding submittal of Proposals, is there any exception if the Proposal gets to 
the City Clerk on the 6th of November because of bad weather?  
 
ANS:  If that is the case you are “toast” as the due date is Monday the 5th by 4:00 PM City of 
Albuquerque time. 
 
2)  If we do have any questions and send them to you will you let everyone know who asked the 
question? 
 
ANS:  It is my experience that most of those who ask questions prefer not to be identified, so I 
publish them without your name, so feel free to ask as many questions as you think necessary. 
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All questions submitted to me will be in writing and answered in writing.  These questions and 
answers will be forwarded to all who have attended this meeting today and posted to the purchasing 
web-site in the form of an addendum.  The company or individual submitting such questions shall 
not be published but will be retained in the purchasing file. 
 
3)  Can we have a copy of the Roster for this meeting? 
 
ANS:  Yes, they will be made available to you by the end of this meeting.  
 
Note:  The attendance roster was made available to those in attendance.  A copy is attached to this 
first Addendum. 
 
4)  So, does the Galleria have access for service or underground access to the Galleria through 2nd 
Street? 
 
ANS:  Did everyone hear the question?  The question has to do with the underground access to the 
Galleria under Second Street.  That is a given.  It is not necessary that you, as a proposer need to 
have an arrangement with the Galleria in advance, but you will need to keep in mind in your 
proposal that that access cannot be changed.  Along with that I would reiterate in case you did not 
pick up on it, right in the middle of that site is a huge fiber wire….Qwest copper and fiber duct bank, 
it sits in the City right of way and would be Quest’s obligation to move it, however their engineers 
tell us it could take 2 to 4 years to do so.  So I wouldn’t just go off assuming it can be plucked out of 
the middle and we could go on with what we want to do. When you get up to the parking structure to 
view the site, you may see this may your plan may not need to mess with that.  You don’t have to 
have a pre-agreement with that property owner, but would have to be taken into consideration. 
 
The access to the Galleria needs to be retained, modification is probably on the table for discussion 
but would have to be reasonable access the property so it could be slightly modified as long as we’re 
retaining reasonable access to the property. 
 
5) On Page 4 of the RFP it states that the cost relocating the duct bank would be the responsibility of 
Qwest.  That is different that will be.  Is Qwest willing to take forth that relocation? 
 
ANS:  The City’s position is that duct bank is in the City’s right of way, which means it falls under 
the Franchise Agreement the City has with Qwest.  That franchise agreement would indicate that 
they [Qwest] are responsible to get that duct bank out of the way for our public purpose.  Does that 
mean they’re not going to take issue with it – no, it does not.  We will tell you what the City’s 
position would be in what we would be representing to Qwest over the duct bank.  It is their 
responsibility financially for relocation costs.  
 
The franchise agreement is on a month-to-month basis.  Qwest is aware of this RFP but we haven’t 
asked them to vacate the right away at this time. 
 
6)  The 2010 Plan is very difficult to download.  Is there a clearer copy for us to use. 
 
ANS:  No, we have the same problem since it is a large document and “misty” at times.  You may 
want to check with City Council Office or Planning Department. 
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7)  On Page 5, Paragraph 3 under the heading “Project Finance”? 
 
ANS:  The question has to do with project financing, about in the middle of page 5; there’s two 
separate issues there.  The New Mexico Legislative passed the Municipal Event Center Funding Act 
in 2005 and has not funded it at all.  It is intended to work somewhat like the New Mexico Finance 
Authority, for example as a recurring replenishing funding source for projects.  They have not 
funded it, I don’t know if they intend to fund it.  The reference to the fact that the City will be 
requesting state grant funds for site acquisition and preparation and would be asking for 5 to 12 
million dollars for the first parcel of land acquisition for this project in a state grant as opposed to a 
loan. 
 
8)  What is the environmental issue on the site? 
 
ANS:  We believe it to be diesel from the railroad station, we are not expecting it to be significant; it 
could be as simple as the removal of some of the material and we don’t anticipate a huge cost would 
be involved.  You can use any approach you choose to address this issue in your proposal. 
 
9)  Do you have a study that outlines what was found?  Can we get it? 
 
ANS: Yes there was a study, but we do not know exactly what happened and do not have this 
information.  We don’t own the document. 
 
10)  Please clarify Paragraph 1.9.7, Page 12 of the RFP. 
 
ANS:  We were frankly trying to allow the maximum flexibility; you will notice there is no 
requirement the Offeror has to accede to any request to substitute or change.  As I have said 
repeatedly, we have tried to build the maximum amount of flexibility into this RFP. 
 
11)  You made reference to the Dr. Martin Luther King thing, is there any thing you want us to do 
with this? 
 
ANS:  It is up to you to tell us what you envision for this piece. 
 
12) In the selection process, do you have any idea how many proposals would be on the short list? 
 
ANS:  We have no preconceived ideas on the number of proposals we will receive or number of 
proposals that may be on the short-list. 
 
 
Having no further questions, the meeting was adjourned and everyone was taken to the parking 
structure above the Convention Center for an overview of the site.  Any questions regarding the RFP 
at this time would have to be submitted in writing for clarification.   
 
There was a discussion regarding the possibility of getting a copy of  a site survey.  We asked 
that this request be put in writing and submitted to purchasing for response.   
































